
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 2 
  

 
 

Parks & Recreation Committee 
Monday, July 10, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Director Monique Scobey (MS), Director Tim Israel (TI), Alt. Director Sid Bazett (SB) 
Director Scobey will be absent; Director Bazett may be able to attend as alternate 

 
Staff:  Interim General Manager Jill Ritzman, Parks & Facilities Superintendent Mike Grassle, 

Recreation Supervisor Kimberly Vickers 
Superintendent Grassle will be absent 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL  
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA 
 
OPEN FORUM  
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 
  



Parks & Recreation Committee July 10, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

1. Automatic Entry Gate for Cameron Park Lake (J. Ritzman; report hand-carried to meeting) 
 

2. Parks & Community Center Donation Policy (J. Ritzman; report hand-carried to meeting) 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

3. Recreation Report (K. Vickers)  
 

4. Parks & Facilities Report (available at August Committee meeting) 
 

Items for May & Future Committee Agendas 
a. Park Improvement Plan Review (August) 
b. Registration/Communication software Report (August) 

 
Items to take to the Board of Directors  
 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 2 
  

 
 

Parks & Recreation Committee 
Monday, June 5, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_NjliYzRlMzYtMDk1OC00ZGEzLWE4MzYtNTQxMjk0NGZlYmUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7
b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-

a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d  

 

Conformed Agenda 
 

Members:  Director Monique Scobey (MS), Director Tim Israel (TI), Alt. Director Sid Bazett (SB) 

Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, Parks & Facilities Superintendent Mike Grassle, 
Recreation Supervisor Kimberly Vickers 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  6:42 pm 

 
ROLL CALL TI, MS – present.  Quorum. 

Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. All demonstrations, including cheering, yelling, whistling, 
handclapping, and foot stomping which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the 
Committee meeting are prohibited. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA MS made a motion to adopt the agenda, 2nd by TI.  Agenda approved. 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjliYzRlMzYtMDk1OC00ZGEzLWE4MzYtNTQxMjk0NGZlYmUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjliYzRlMzYtMDk1OC00ZGEzLWE4MzYtNTQxMjk0NGZlYmUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjliYzRlMzYtMDk1OC00ZGEzLWE4MzYtNTQxMjk0NGZlYmUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjliYzRlMzYtMDk1OC00ZGEzLWE4MzYtNTQxMjk0NGZlYmUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d


Parks & Recreation Committee June 5, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
Regular Meeting Conformed Agenda 

OPEN FORUM  
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Committee 
without discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Committee 
member or a member of the audience and placed under Department Matters #4 to be discussed and acted 
upon individually. 

1. Receive and Approve - Conformed Agenda – Parks & Recreation Committee Special Meeting – 
May 1, 2023 
 

2. Receive and File - Recreation Report (K. Vickers)  

3. Receive and File - Parks & Facilities Report (M. Grassle)  
 
TI made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with item #3 being moved to Department Matters 
item #4 for discussion.  2nd by MS.  Consent agenda approved. 
 

DEPARTMENT MATTERS 

4. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion. Item #3: Receive and File - Parks & 
Facilities Report (M. Grassle)  
 

5. Condition of Community Center Water Slide (M. Bustabade, M. Grassle, K. Vickers) Discussion 
and Recommendation 

 
6. Parks & Recreation Master Plan update (A. Pichly) Discussion and Recommendation – 

 
Staff will return in July or August to discuss next steps for park improvements and available 
funding.   

Items for May & Future Committee Agendas 

a. Sponsorships and Donations for events 

b. Registration/Communication software Report 

c. Park Use and Fees 

d. Parks Gift Donation program 

 
Items to take to the Board of Directors  - none 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT MS made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by TI.  Meeting adjourned at 7:45 pm. 
 



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  July 10, 2023 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, Interim General Manager 
 Mike Grassle, Parks & Facilities Superintendent 
     
AGENDA ITEM #1: Automatic Entry Gate for Cameron Park Lake  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and Forward to the Board of Directors 
 
Introduction 
Staff is recommending that the Parks and Recreation Committee provide feedback to staff 
regarding the merits of automating the entry gate at Cameron Park Lake, and whether or not to 
forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors for consideration.  If supported, staff will 
complete analyzing bids received during the Fall 2022 and make a recommendation to the Board 
of Directors regarding a specific vendor.  Due to the passage of time, staff is working to secure 
all the bids received during the bid timeline last Fall 2023.   
 
Background 
In October 2022, staff released a Request for Proposal to automate the entry at Cameron Park 
Lake (Attachment A).  Three responses were received from Parking BOXX, VenTek and a third 
to-be-named company.  This project was set aside due to the January 2023 storms and required 
damage clean-up and repairs.  Staff is bringing this forward now to help address the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 budget deficit.  There will be operational savings in staff time (savings amount 
brought orally to meeting).  Superintendent Mike Grassle led this effort but is unable to attend 
tonight’s Parks and Recreation Committee meeting.   
 
Discussion 
All three companies had competitive, comparable pricing.  Parking Boxx provided the strongest 
bid offering the most options for a system.  Staff met with Parking BOXX representative on site 
to discuss the project. Parking BOXX system is $28,385 including Flat-Rate BOXX, barrier gate, 
software and installation (Attachment 1B).   
 
VinTek cost is $29,559 as outlined in their Price Quote (Attachment 1C).   
 



FY 2023-2024 Preliminary Budget June 21, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
 

Cameron Park Lake’s entry kiosk provides all the utilities needed to implement this system, a 
good cost savings for implementing the capital improvement project.    
 
Conclusion 
Staff is seeking feedback from the Committee regarding the merits of automating Cameron Park 
Lake entry.  There are significant efficiencies with automation including: eliminates Recreation 
Supervisor’s coordination of the program and staff including recruitment, training and 
scheduling; eliminates cash handling risks; gate is a year-round operation.  If the Committee 
supports forwarding a recommendation to the Board of Directors to automate the Cameron Park 
Lake entry, staff will fully review the proposals received last fall, select a vendor, and make a 
recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve a purchase agreement.   
 
Attachments: 
A: Request for Proposal 
B: Parking BOXX response 
C: VinTek response 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Proposal 
Installation of an automated gate entry system 
 
 
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
www.cameronpark.org 
530.677.2231 
 
 
Issued: October 7, 2022 
Submittal Deadline (EXTENDED): November 28, 2022 
 
  

http://www.cameronpark.org/


P a g e  | 2 of 4 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District   Extended due date: November 28, 2022 
Request for Proposal 
 

Project Overview 
Cameron Park Community Services District (CPCSD) is seeking an experienced Company to 
design, implement and install an automated unattended revenue control parking system. The 
system needs to include a revenue control box, two 10’ automatic robotic arm gates for 
entrance and exit with the option for a spike strip that will prevent the public from entering the 
park from the exit. We will also accept an alternate automated unattended revenue control 
parking system that the company may believe to be a better solution to that then has been 
outlined. The system needs to be installed at the entrance to Cameron Park Lake (2989 
Cambridge Rd. Cameron Park CA 95682). Currently the district utilizes a kiosk system with a 
staff member who accepts payment or checks season pass holders. There is no enforcement 
program planned for the pay to park system. 
 
The district has 120V power within 10 ft’ of proposed installation of the automated gate system. 
 
Cameron Park Community Services District 
Cameron Park is a small foothill community located on the Highway 50 corridor between El 
Dorado Hills and Shingle Springs in El Dorado County.  The district provides fire and emergency 
services, parks and recreation, waste collection and recycling, lighting and landscape 
maintenance, architecture review, and CC&R enforcement activities to approximately 18,000 
residents.  The district operates two fire stations, ten parks, 19 lighting & landscape districts 
and a community center with pool. 
 
Project Objectives & Scope of Services  
Unattended revenue control box will: 

- Accept coins, cash, credit cards and scans season pass barcode for entry 
- Allow barcodes to be scanned for event where the public pays for parking in advance 
- Can read QR codes or barcodes on paper or cell phone  
- Security Camaras with recording capabilities 
- Manage multiple rate structures 
- Sunlight readable display 
- Size and Dimensions of control box 
- Counts vehicles entering and exiting the park in real time 
- Can be locked out when facility is closed 
- Ability to print receipts 
- Temperature control within unit 

Barrier gate/robotic arm will: 

- Barrier will open upon contacting an obstruction 
- Reflective safety tape 
- Emergency vehicle automatic opener 
- Audible alarm when closing 
- Battery back-up that will open gate upon a power outage 
- Sensor that will not allow gate to close upon obstruction 
- Sensor that detects vehicles exiting the park 



P a g e  | 3 of 4 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District   Extended due date: November 28, 2022 
Request for Proposal 
 

Parking Management Software preferences: 

- 24/7 access to camara’s Live feed 
- Web access, rate configuration, printed document settings, alerts, and reporting 
- Real time revenue reporting 
- Number of parking spaces available from a remote location 

Other service preferences include: 

- Wayfinding signage including directional signs, cost to enter and available spaces 
- Custom Branding 
- Stop and go lighting 
- Please include pricing for any additional items needed for system to be operational. 

Project Bids 
Bids must include requirements stated in the RFP. Disregarding these requirements may result 
in disqualification of the bid.   
 
Project Proposals need to include your companies’ thoughts on what type of system you would 
recommend at Cameron Park Lake. The district is open to thoughts and ideas as we look to 
install an automated parking system that makes the most sense for Cameron Park Lake.  
 
A detailed virtual drawing of the automated gate system that is being recommended for 
Cameron Park Lake. 
 
All proposal materials can be emailed or placed in a sealed package clearly marked with: 
 

Name of the Firm 
Response to Request for Proposal 
For: Front Entry Way 
Attention: Michael Grassle Parks and Facilities Superintendent 

 
Proposals may be mail or dropped off to: 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
Attention: Michael Grassle Parks and Facilities Superintendent 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
Proposals can be emailed to: 

mgrassle@cameronpark.org  
 
It is the responsibility of the respondent to ensure that proposals are received by the deadline 
on Page 1. Questions regarding the proposal can be sent via email to 
mgrassle@cameronpark.org. If contractor would like to set up a time to see the project listed 
above, please send email to mgrassle@cameronpark.org or contact Michael Grassle at 530-558-
1146. Staff will not respond to questions within 48 hours of the deadline.   
 
Bids shall include the following elements, organized in the following order: 
 

mailto:mgrassle@cameronpark.org
mailto:mgrassle@cameronpark.org
mailto:mgrassle@cameronpark.org


P a g e  | 4 of 4 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District   Extended due date: November 28, 2022 
Request for Proposal 
 

1. Cover Letter 
All proposals must include a cover letter submitted on the firm’s letterhead containing 
the signature and title of the person who is authorized to commit the firm to a potential 
contract with the district. The cover letter should express the firm’s interest and serve as 
an executive summary of the project.   

 
2. Qualifications 

Demonstrate the firm’s qualifications with the following information:  
o References - List contact information and dates of service from three public agencies 

or businesses who have received similar services to this RFP.  
o Resume(s) or list of employee(s) and their work experience of those who will 

oversee the project. 
o Description of the firm’s safety measures.   

 
3. Description Scope of Services & Costs 

o A complete description of the project from start to finish 
o An itemized cost of each upgrade available.  
o The companies’ recommendation on what system would work best for Cameron Park 

Lake. 
o Company’s hourly rate should a change order need to be submitted. 

 
 
 
Selection Procedure and Timeline 
Responses will be evaluated in terms of qualifications, experience, system design, references, 
and cost. A review of responses will be made by the District’s Leadership Team which includes 
the Finance Director, General Manager, and Parks Superintendent. The district will look to select 
a contractor by the end of 2022. The General Manager and Parks and Facilities Superintendent 
will negotiate a contact with the selected business. If an agreement cannot be negotiated that 
is acceptable, the General Manager and Parks Superintendent will negotiate with the next best-
qualified respondent.   
 
Direct questions regarding the RFP via email to Michael Grassle mgrassle@cameronpark.org 
Parks and Facilities Superintendent 
 
 
 

mailto:mgrassle@cameronpark.org






















































CONFIDENTIAL

Project Cameron Park Community Services District - Request for Proposal - Front Entry Way Date
Account Account Type
Client Michael Grassle Parks and Facilities Superintendent Client Phone
Address 2502 Country Club Dr. Cameron Park, Ca Client Email
Prepared by Victoria Iacovetto Validity 90 days

Part I - Capital Costs - Hardware, Installation, Setup & Services

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 
E1 M600  Pay in Lane Automated Fee Machine Includes 1 year Warranty

Power Configuration: AC 1 $12,950 $12,950
Connectivity:  Cellular 
Payment Mode: 

Credit Card Acceptance
All In One Payment Device - Credit Card Insert, Swipe, Near Field and Bar/QR Code Reader

Bill Acceptance - with spare bill vault
Coin Acceptane

Custom Wrap - Door Only
Gate Relay
Heater - with AC AFMs only
Pedestal - 12", 18", 24", 30", 35" options

$12,950

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 
GCE001 Microdrive Parking Pro 1.3 S with 12' Foam Covered Variboom RC01240 w/ Boom Repair Kit 2 $4,785 $9,570
GCE002 Optional LED Strips - 2 LED strips (red/green) includes supply unit, control unit, and mounting plate. Red in 

down position, flashing red while moving, and green in up position. per gate $1,000

GCE003 Magnetic Buzzer EU01 - Provides Audio tone when closing 2 $158 $316
GCE004 Counting Module (Gate) 2 $437 $874
GCE005 Optional Lot Full Sign with 60" Post Mount and PowerSupply and Cables - for use with Counting Module 1 $1,020
VIDEO I Video Intercom 1 $2,723
VIDEO C Security Camera - Included in Video Intercom pricing 1 Included
EMERG Emergency Vehical Detector

SENSOR

Laser Sensor - Can be used wherever barriers with high impact forces are intended to provide rapid 
processing but not bar pedestrian passage. The laser scanner reliably detects vehicles and persons, 
ensuring maximum personal protection. Used instead of induction loops, when induction loops cannot be 
laid down or when optimum operation is pre- vented.

per gate $3,492

SENSOR2 Connection to customer installed Induction Loops - Loops should be installed as part of site prep.  VenTek 
will test and connect tgate to induction loop 4 $75 $300

CARDS PVC Cards for Annual Passes or any discounted of free entry -  Size of Credit Card (3.375" x 2.125" (86 mm 
x 54 mm) 30 Mil) with either Bar/QR code or Magnetic Strip - Custom Graphic designed with Cameron Park

Minim Quantity 
500 1.50 ea

Optional Stop and Go Sign 1 TBD
$11,807

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 

INSTS1 Installation & Training - Installation is an estimate based on a standard installation.  Additional fees billed at 
time and Material +10% (Refer to note 5) 1 $1,200

INST2 System Design & Operational Customization (One-time Fee) 1 $4,995 Included
INST3 Additional Fees for unanticipated or unnegotiated work 

Shipping1 Delivery
$1,200

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 
venVUE venVUE System Management Software / Annual Subscription Per System (Primary User)  1 $495 $495
DATA Data Hosting Service / Annual Fee Per Pay Station 1 $540 $540
CELL Cellular Connectivity Service for Pay Station 1 $540 $540
COUP Coupon Code for Enhanced Features - Annual pass, Entry Options for Staff & Vendors & Valadations 1 $120 $120

PCI Payment Gateway - PCI Compliant Secure Electronic Payment Processing2 1 $240 $240
$2,635

Pay Station as Defined in RFP $12,950.00
Gate Equipment $11,807.00

Sales Tax @8.36% $2,069.69
Installation and Training $1,200.00

Annual Recurring Software Subscriptions Including Payment Gateway $2,635.00
Total with Pay Station as Defined in RFP $30,661.69

VenTek Recommended PayStation as Defined in RFP w/o Coin Acceptance $11,970.00
Total with VenTek Recommended PayStation as Defined in RFP w/o Coin Acceptance $29,599.76

Customer Provided

ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION FEES

Annual Software Subscriptions

$150/hr.

Part II - Operating Costs - Software Subscription Fees

                              PRICE QUOTATION

REVENUE COLLECTION EQUIPMENT

Pay on Entry Pay Station

INSTALLATION & TRAINING  

Installation & Training 

Gate Control Equipment Sub-total

GATE CONTROL EQUIPMENT

29-Nov-2022

mgrassle@cameronpark.org 
530-558-1146



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  July 10, 2023 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, Interim General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #2: DONATION POLICY; POLICY 1061 – NAMING OF DISTRICT 

PARKS AND FACILITIES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review and Forward to the Board of Directors 
 
Introduction 
Cameron Park Community Services District (District), Policy 1061 – Naming of District 
Parks and Facilities, Section D. Criterial for creating memorials in an individual’s name 
outlines stipulations and procedures for creating a memorial in a park (Attachment 2A).  
There is an initiative to create stronger stipulations for donations in parks and facilities, 
and the appropriate next step would be to update this policy.    
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends striking Section D, 1, 2, and 3 from Policy 1061; and creating Policy 
1062 – Donations that Add Amenities to Parks and Facilities.  
 
Discussion 
In discussions with staff and Board members, there is an interest in adding the 
following stipulations to a new or revised policy: 
 

• Policy includes (but not limited to) donation of benches, picnic tables, public art, 
drinking fountains, and playground equipment.  

 
• District staff determine style, appearance, aesthetics, verbiage and/or images, 

location, installation and placement in accordance to District park master plan.  
 

• District staff may dispose of any donated item when it reaches the end of its useful 
life as determined by Parks staff, which includes stolen, moved, broken, aged or 
vandalized items rendered unfit or unsafe for continued use or exhibition.  Staff 
will make every effort to notify the donor before the disposition of the item, 



FY 2023-2024 Preliminary Budget June 21, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
 

allow time for donor to replace the item in accordance to the above Policy 
stipulations, and/or have the plaque returned to them. 

 
Conclusion 
If the Parks and Recreation Committee agrees with the above stipulations, staff will 
create a new Policy 1062 for consideration by the Board of Directors.   
 
Attachment 
2A. Policy 1062 – Donations that Add Amenities to Parks and Facilities 



Adopted by BOD Sept. 10, 2014  1061 - 1 of 3 
 

 

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

* POLICY GUIDE SERIES - 3000 OPERATIONS* 
  
 

    

POLICY TITLE:  NAMING OF DISTRICT PARKS AND FACILITIES 
POLICY NUMBER: 1061 
 

Purpose: 
These guidelines are intended to establish rules and procedures to name facilities such 
as park and recreation facilities, section of facilities or rooms of facilities, including 
Parks, park benches other community property as deemed appropriate. 
 
Definitions: 
Parks are owned and managed by the CPCSD, used for public recreation purposes and 
include developed and undeveloped park areas and designated open space areas. 
 
Facilities are owned and managed by the CPCSD to conduct District business. 
 
Specific Facilities are facilities/amenities that could be located within a park or part of 
a Facility. These include, but are not limited to athletic fields, gymnasiums, meeting 
rooms, picnic shelters, tennis and basketball courts, aquatic facilities and playground 
equipment. 
 
During the master-planning phase and/or prior to Board approving final plans and 
specifications on any park or public building, an open period of approximately two 
weeks will be announced giving individuals, staff and the Board an opportunity to 
suggest names for the facility. 
 
If using a community naming process, a press release will be sent out notifying the 
public, and interested individuals could submit the appropriate form giving staff some 
information regarding the suggested name. Names should be submitted to the General 
Manager. 
 
Provisions of plaques and/or other physical commemorative items relating to facility 
naming, if not donated, are subject to normal budgeting and purchasing processes of 
the District. 
 
Staff, along with an established committee or selection committee, will review all names 
and prioritize and recommend a name for finalization by the Board of Directors. The 
Board will receive all names submitted along with the staff/committee evaluation. 
 
Land or gifts with deed restrictions may not follow these guidelines. 
Names must be in accordance to District policy as noted. 



Policy #1061 Naming of District Parks and Facilities  1061 - 2 of 3 
 

Policy: 
A.  Parks: 

1. Name to reflect geographical location, historical references or feature of park, or 
significant or unusual natural features known throughout the community. 

2. Named after a significant individual(s). 
3. The intent of naming is for permanent recognition. Therefore any request of 

CPCSD to rename an existing park, facility or specific facility will be subject to 
examination so as to not diminish the original justification for the name. 
 

B.  Buildings: 
1. Name to reflect the services provided in facility. 
2. Name to reflect geographical location. 
3. Named after significant individual(s). 

 
C.  Criteria for naming a facility after an individual: 

1. Individual must have made a significant contribution to the facility by: 
a. Donation of land or large financial contribution to the facility. 
b. Contributed substantially and improved the quality of life in the Cameron Park 

Community Service District. This could relate to involvement with parks and 
recreation or other community involvement. 

c.  The person being memorialized died in the line of duty serving CPCSD or the 
United States of America. 

2.  Each public facility or place within parks, such as ball fields, groves, walkways, 
trails and buildings or special rooms in a building could be named after selected 
individuals in their honor as desired and appropriate. 

 
D.  Criteria for creating memorials in an individual’s name: 

1.  Individual must have made a significant contribution to the facility by: 
a. Donation of land or large financial contribution to the facility. 
b. Contributed significantly and improved the quality of life in the Cameron Park 

Community Services District. This could relate to involvement with parks and 
recreation or other public agency. 

2.  The memorial should be a non-living, low maintenance improvement, which 
should serve a purpose to the District, for example, a bench with a plaque. All 
costs of the improvement shall be the responsibility of the donor. The donor may 
submit information and recommendation to the General Manager regarding 
relevant history of the person to be memorialized, type of improvement desired 
and verbiage requested. Final decisions regarding the improvement, including, 
but not limited to, materials, equipment, location and labor will be made by the 
District. 

3.  The District must get approval from the individual or family (if available). 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy #1061 Naming of District Parks and Facilities  1061 - 3 of 3 
 

Procedures: 
The following procedures for naming a park, CPCSD facility& specific facility will be 
used by the CPCSD Board: 
A. The CPCSD Board will evaluate the merit of each suggested park, CPCSD facility 

and specific facility name according to criteria outlined in this policy. The General 
Manager or designated staff shall make recommendations to the CPCSD Board for 
approval subject to the Board of Directors final approval. 

B. When appropriate CPCSD will solicit help/suggestions from historical societies or 
other groups having a specific knowledge, when considering a name to highlight an 
area’s geographic or historic significance. 

C. To stimulate public interest and to obtain additional suggestions, a part of the 
selection process to name a park, facility or specific facility may include a contest or 
competition involving the public. Only suggestions which meet these policy 
guidelines will be considered. 

D. The naming or parks, facilities and specific facilities should begin prior to the first 
phase of development when possible. 

E. Groups or individuals may submit nominations for naming a new park, facility or 
specific facility in writing on a form provided by CPCSD, or in a letter that contains all 
pertinent information. 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  July 10, 2023 
  
FROM:  Kimberly Vickers, Recreation Supervisor 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2: RECREATION REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE AND FILE  
 
June was a busy start to our summer operations. We trained and on-boarded 50 seasonal 
employees. We also spent the month preparing for the Summer Spectacular. It was 
another great event this year! The community center continues to be a bustling place with 
user groups, camps, and renters.  In the 22/23 year our community center rentals 
including our community center rooms and private pool rental by community 
members is $60, 688.84.  Comparatively, in 18/19 our revenue was 57,088.92, and in 21/22 
it was 31,688.50. This revenue does not include fees from contractor classes, swim teams, 
or other user groups.  Community center rentals have bounced back from the disruption 
caused by COVID.   
 
Annual passes for the 22/23 totaled $41,544 paid. In 21/22 fees were $58, 371.99, and in 
20/21 $51,972.00.  The decline in purchases may be due to the loss of pickleball at the lake, 
the closure of the entrance for four months, and lack of amenities (slide) at the pool. Staff 
recommendation is to explore cost/benefit of new amenities at the pool such as shade 
structures, useable space for younger kids/families, and amenities that make the deep 
end usable and attractive. Staff is working to resolve the permit constraints for Pickleball 
courts with County Planning staff.   
 
Project High-five launched this month as well with a series of firsts. Thirty-five staff 
attended the first staff training on Disability Awareness and Person-Centered 
Approaches. Staff implemented the first inclusive park pop-up program; attendance was 
small, but likely due to the 100+ degree weather.  The next monthly pop-up will be July 
27th. Camp staff have utilized their new training and with the support of Kim, have 
implemented successful behavior management strategies, and emotion regulation 
techniques with a few camp participants allowing them to be successful at camp. We have 
also started the process of purchasing new equipment to be utilized with current and 
future programs. Reporting documents to the Department of Developmental services 



Recreation Report July 10, 2023 Page 2 of 6 
 

began per the terms of the grant agreement, along with in-person communications to Alta 
Regional staff.   
     
Staff wrapped up the Community Outreach survey in June; A snapshot of the results is 
below.  
 

 
 

 
   



Recreation Report July 10, 2023 Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
How do respondents want to receive information: 
77.8% Email 
39.9% Website 
35.2% Social Media 
16% Text 
20.4% Physical mail 
 
Types of programs respondents would like to see more of: 
43.1% Adult Special Interest Classes 
32.9% Youth Sports 
28.7% Special Events 
22.9% Youth Special Interest Classes 
21.7% Aquatics Programs 
 
Staff recommendation is for District communications to be centralized in Recreation 
Department to increase clarity and frequency.  Additional instructors for adult and youth 
special interest classes should be sought, and development of new youth sports programs 
when the staffing structure of the department allows (Recreation Coordinator position is 
currently vacant).  A focus on quality not quantity should be upheld moving forward as 
well. 
  



Recreation Report July 10, 2023 Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Recreation Programming: 
Below is a quick summary on everything that has been happening: 

• Cameron Park Lake Events & Kiosk Operations 
o Kiosk will be open 6 days per week, with closure on Sunday unless we have 

an event.  
• Camps 

o Camp CP has opened up more spaces in camp, and continue to have 
registrations for camp 

o Mad Science summer camp has another session in July 
o We are piloting summer sports camps with National Academy of Athletics 

with success 
o West Coast Dance Arts camps are open for registration with some 

participation 
 

• Aquatics: 
o We continue to have lap swim 6 days a week 
o We have Aquasol swim team 6 days a week 
o Sharks practicing 5 days a week and some Saturday meets 
o Aquabody Strong continues but with limited participation this season 
o Swim lessons are starting third session, with most classes full 
o Rec Swim is offered 7 days a week, with Fridays being offered in the 

evening. 
 Typically see approximately 25 participants per day, with only a few 

when the weather is below 95 degrees 
• Sports: 

o Continue Sunday evening open Gym time- with minimal participation 
o Indoor Pickleball continues. Stats as of June 30, 2023: 

 85 drop-ins/ $255 brought in 
 0 Punch cards sold 
 63 Annual Pass swipes 

o Ballet continues 
o Soccer shots will continue with a summer session 

 
• Community Center Programs 

o Senior Social Hour continues with participants on Tuesday and Thursday 
o Modified Zumba continues 
o Gold Nugget Quilters continue to meet on Wednesdays 
o Elderly Nutrition congregate meals continue in-person five days a week 
o Cooking with Kids returns 
o Tai Chi is running again 



Recreation Report July 10, 2023 Page 5 of 6 
 

o Speaking Spanish Beginning and Intermediate 
o Speaking Spanish- Kids 

 
• Upcoming Events 

o Dive-in Movie- July 15th (CSD Pool) 
o Inclusive Park Pop-up- July 27th (Lake) 

 
Communications: 

o Active engagement on Facebook, Instagram 
 Instagram Insights (last 30 days) 

• Accounts engaged- increased by 83% 
• Followers- increased again by 3% 

 Facebook 
• Post engagement- increased in June by 38% 
• Followers- Gained 71 in June 

o Updating district website-  
 Page views: 77,731 
 3,050 subscribers to a distribution list (increase of 52 subscribers) 
 2,596 subscribers to E-newsletter (increase of 37 subscribers) 

 

    
Reaction Time Drill                     Swim Lesson Training 
 



Recreation Report July 10, 2023 Page 6 of 6 
 

         
“Wild Things”- Joint Event with Library      Puffy Painting 
 

   
Color Wars                                                                  Summer Spectacular Fireworks 


